




























































































































 

 

1 of 3 

 

Village of Shorewood Hills 
Finance Committee 

Approved Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, June 12, 2018 

 
1. Call to Order – Finance Committee Chairperson Fred Wade called the meeting to order 

at 5:30 pm. 
 
2. Roll Call Committee – Members present were Mr. Wade, Mark Lederer, Karl 

Wellensiek, Gard Strother and Sean Cote. Carl Gulbrandsen and David Ahmann were 
excused. Also in attendance were Village Administrator Karl Frantz, Administrative 
Services Manager/Deputy Clerk David Sykes, Village Clerk Karla Endres and Stephanie 
Nelson, Audit Manager at Baker Tilly. 

 
3. Note Compliance with open meeting laws – Mr. Frantz confirmed the meeting had been 

properly posted and noticed.  
 
4. Review/approve February 14, 2018 minutes – Mr. Cote clarified his statement 

regarding the impact of additional fees in the context of the new federal tax deduction 
limits. The minutes were changed to read: 

Mr. Cote indicated he has changed his mind regarding adding fees in light 

of the tax law changes. With the $10K limit on property tax and State 

income tax deductions, how much is a utility fee going to affect most 

residents? 

Mr. Cote moved and Mr. Strother seconded a motion to approve the minutes with this 
change and correction of a couple of typographical mistakes. 
Approved on a vote of 4-0-1 (Mr. Lederer abstaining). 
 

5. Consider 2017 Financial Statements – Ms. Nelson, the Village’s lead auditor, presented 
the highlights of the Draft 2017 Financial Statements. Mr. Frantz had discussed the 
Financial Statements with Ms. Nelson prior to the meeting resulting in an adjustment to 
the fund balances in the draft. The Unassigned balance was reduced from $807,853 to 
$699,615 and the Nonspendable balance was increased the same amount from $127,351 
to $235,589 reflecting money advanced to TIF 4. TIF 4 is now creating surplus increment 
and should be able to be able to pay back the General Fund advance over time. The 
adjustment to the Unassigned and Nonspendable Funds did not change overall General 
Fund Balance of $1,118,567 (down from $1,345,235 in 2016). The assigned balance of 
$183,363 includes ~$133K expected to be used to balance the 2018 budget. 

 
Mr. Frantz reviewed the 2016 and 2017 revenues and expenses. At the end of 2016, the 
Nonspendable balance was $334,615 (most of which is comprised of an advance to TIF 
4). At the end of 2017, it decreased to $235,589 and is expected to continue to go down 
in the future as TIF 4 pays off the advance. The Assigned balance is comprised mostly of 
the fund balance applied to the subsequent year’s budget. The Unassigned balance 

decreased as well. In 2017, the Village expected to use $141,401 of fund balance. The 
Village actually used $226,668 of fund balance or $85,267 more than expected. Revenues 
were more than expected, mostly due to increased state road aid, building inspection fees, 



 

 

2 of 3 

 

investments, insurance dividend, recreation program participation and Village tree sales. 
Expenses were more than expected, as well, mostly due to retirement of the Police Chief 
(unanticipated payment of the Chief’s health insurance premium from accrued sick 

leave), Interim Police Chief/hiring process and officer overtime and part-time work, new 
Police Chief’s salary and signing bonus, the data crash and staff time to restore records, 
and increased costs related to building inspections, recreation programs and tree sales. 
2018 expenses are on track and Mr. Frantz is working with Department Heads to keep 
expenses within budget. Some potential, unbudgeted revenues in 2018 include the 
insurance claim for the data loss, building permit fees and an increase to the annual 
insurance dividend. 
 
Mr. Wellensiek asked about the status of the Madison Water claim for lost water. Mr. 
Frantz indicated that any money received would go to the Water Utility, not the General 
Fund, but he was not too optimistic about receiving compensation. 
 
Ms. Nelson continued with the highlights of the Financial Statements. The analysis of the 
General Fund balance showed the Unassigned Fund balance is ~23% of 2017 expenses 
which is within the Village’s self-imposed limit of 15-25%. The General Obligation Debt 
percentage continues to go down in relation to the debt limit (55% in 2016, 52% in 2017). 
The Village has done a good job of borrowing money when interest rates were low. The 
Village’s debt to capital ratio is stable at ~30%. As with most municipalities, the 
Village’s revenues come mainly from property taxes and the majority of expenses are for 

public safety. The Madison Fire Department fee has increased due to the new apartment 
buildings but should stabilize now. Some of the fee increase is offset by a fee paid by 
developers building in the TIF districts. With respect to the other Village Funds, the 
Financial Statements are a snapshot of the funds at the end of 2017. Most of the money 
listed in the Capital Improvement Fund has been spent on the new storage building, there 
is about $100K remaining. Loans to the utilities should be paying back about $400K over 
the next four years which is about one year behind the previously expected payback 
schedule. The water utility did not perform as expected, mainly due to the purchased 
water loss due to a couple of large leaks in the mains. Madison Water has finally supplied 
the Village with the ability to read the meters in the incoming and outgoing meter pits. 
Village staff records the meter readings daily and should be able to identify future leaks 
immediately. Mr. Frantz said he is confident the water utility will produce the expected 
revenue moving forward. Ms. Nelson indicated that TIF 3 and TIF 4 are producing some 
revenue but they have large debt payments and payments to developers. The property 
revaluation done in 2017 should help the TIF districts in the long run. The Sewer and 
Stormwater Utilities are stable. 
 
Ms. Nelson discussed the data crash and commended the staff for the data restoration. 
The auditors tested numerous items and didn’t find any significant issues. Staff did a 

great job getting everything ready for the audit in light of the data crash and Ms. 
Albrecht’s retirement. 
 
Mr. Lederer found some minor errors in the draft Financial Statements. He will work 
with Mr. Frantz to get his information to Ms. Nelson so she can finalize them in the next 



 

 

3 of 3 

 

7-10 days. He asked if the staff restructuring done this year will result in some of the 
check marks in the Governance and Management Letter being removed for the 2018 
Financial Statements. Ms. Nelson said it is possible but some check marks result from 
having a small staff. Testing of procedures during the audit are directly related to some of 
the internal control deficiencies.  
Mr. Lederer asked about the material misstatements section. There are some tasks that the 
auditors perform rather than staff, but the draft letter states that the work was done in 
response to misstatements by management. Could the language be changed to “Audit 

Adjustments” or language added to clarify that some work was done by the auditors and 
was not the result of misstatements by Village management. Ms. Nelson she would check 
to see if the language could be changed. Mr. Wade added that some language should be 
added to the Governance Letter to illustrate management’s reliance on the auditors for 

preparation of certain entries in the Financial Statements. Mr. Lederer also asked what is 
the magnitude of decentralized cash collection at Pool and Police Department. The Pool 
is moving more towards credit card payments, so the amount of  cash may not be 
significant but the auditors take a conservative approach to highlight the situation for 
consideration by management. 
 
 

 
6. Update on water utility water loss matters – Discussed previously with the Financial 

Statements. 
 
7. Update on Village computer system, restoration of system, and pending claim – 

Discussed previously with the Financial Statements. 
 
8. Review 2018 General Fund financials – Discussed previously with the Financial 

Statements. 
 
9. Set next meeting date – The Committee will meet in July to review the finalized 2017 

Financial Statements. 
 
10. The meeting was adjourned at about 7:00 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
David Sykes 
Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk 



 

Page 1 of 5 

 

APPROVED MINUTES FOR THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 
PLAN COMMISSION 

 
The Tuesday, June 12, 2018 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order at 7:07 pm by 
Chair Dave Benforado. Members present were: Mr. Benforado, Karl Wellensiek, Earl Munson, 
Deb Remington, Jim Etmanczyk, Brauna Hartzell and John Imes. Also present was Karl Frantz, 
Village Administrator and David Sykes, Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk. 18 
visitors were in the audience. 
 
Mr. Frantz confirmed the meeting had been properly posted and noticed. 
 
Review certified survey map (CSM) for lot line adjustment Lot 1 Block 18, Beloit Court 
replat, part of Lot 18 Block 19 
This CSM was received within the last few days and there has not been enough time to review it. 
Mr. Benforado tabled this item until the Commission’s next meeting on July 10. 
 
Initial review of certified survey map (CSM) involving property at 2725 Marshall Court, 
2801 Marshall Court and 2840-2862 University Avenue 
Mr. Frantz explained that the CSM is a complicated exchange of land amongst multiple property 
owners. It will allow the bike path to continue along the south side of the University Station 
property. The CSM should include some adjustments to the easement to redirect the bike path 
connection, with the existing path south of the tennis courts, further north (away from University 
Avenue and the railroad tracks) making the intersection better and safer. A revised CSM will be 
considered at a later meeting. 
 
Public Hearing on rezoning from C-3(P) to Planned Unit Development General and 
Specific Development Plans for a mixed use shared workspace, restaurant and daycare 
project located at 2801 Marshall Court 
Mr. Benforado called the public hearing to order at 7:18 pm. 
Rich Arneson of Stone House Development introduced Randy Bruce and Duane Johnson of 
Knothe Bruce Architects who presented the Lodgic project at 2801 Marshall Court. Mr. Bruce 
reviewed the significant amount of property being dedicated to the Village to continue 
Catafalque Drive and the bike path extension. There will be a land swap between 2801 Marshall 
Court and University Station to allow University Station to reconfigure their parking lot and 
dedicate land for the bike path. 
Mr. Bruce indicated they are proposing a two-story building for the Lodgic project, parallel 
parking stalls on Catafalque Drive that will be short-term parking for the daycare facility, and 
parallel stalls on Marshall Court. There will be 64 underground parking stalls on two levels with 
a ramp entrance along the west side of the Lodgic building. There will be an outside play area 
and bicycle parking spaces (10 underground, 10 surface spots). 
The first floor will consist of a restaurant/bar, event space, exterior plaza, daycare (with separate 
entrance), and co-working space where children are allowed. They are working with a consultant 
to determine the required parking for the facility. The restaurant footprint is relatively small for a 
restaurant. 
The second floor will be the main co-working space, which will also include an outdoor 
workspace. There are some features that invite people to visit the first floor amenities. 



 

Page 2 of 5 

 

Mr. Bruce showed some 3D renderings of the building that included wood-like fiberboard siding, 
cast stone, brick color, and anodized windows. Visibility is key to the business, so the corner 
windows and building design are intended to be highly visible from University Avenue and 
Marshall Court. Signage will be very important to the project to make it recognizable. Intend to 
have signage on both the Marshall Court and University Avenue sides of the building. 
Cheryl Farr, Founder & Chief Brand Officer, of Signal CSK Brand Partners has been partnering 
with Moose International for four years to develop this project. She reviewed the history of 
Moose International, which was founded in 1888 as an elite men’s social club. By the turn of the 
century, the clubs were failing. At that time, James J. Davis led Moose International. He worked 
to reinvent it into an organization that served as a social safety net that served working class 
families. James J. Davis began Mooseheart Child City and School for children in need in 1912. 
Scott Hart wanted to extend the Mooseheart mission to more children and remain relevant for a 
new generation. By 1990, service group memberships began to drop, it fell out of favor with 
younger adults. Scott Hart lead the organization at that time and changed direction to become 
relevant to the younger generation. 
There has been a sea change in the way people work now. There are 53M freelance workers in 
the U.S., 30M of those are millennials. Many workers, not just millennials, are working in non-
traditional ways, they have partners, and they have children. Moose International has developed 
four areas of focus: 

 Lodgic Everyday Community™: Services for non-traditional families 
 Lodgic Kids Camp™: Play-and-learn childcare (drop in daycare) 
 Lodgic Workplace™: Co-working (independent workers, small businesses, etc.) 
 Lodgic Everyday Kitchen™: Craft Food Café (high quality, grab-and-go items during the 

day and sit-down restaurant at night) 
Membership options are varied; a number of amenities are open to public. 
Ms. Farr discussed five market advantages related to the Lodgic project: 

 Location: Business works best when serving small and midsized communities, Moose is 
planning 10 in the Midwest over the next 3+ years. 

 Adjacencies: Intended to serve the needs of the community. Customers can use as many 
or as few of the services available. There are built-in efficiencies by combining 
amenities, like daycare and food service. 

 Hospitality Experience: They have the mindset to serve their customers everywhere, not 
just the restaurant. 

 Day Part Activation: Workers’ needs change throughout the day. The facility changes 
throughout the day as well. 

 Audience: Integrated services for working women who are also typically the primary 
caregiver. 

She said more information about the Champaign, Illinois facility that is opening this summer is 
available at www.lodgic.org. 
Mike Slavney of Vandewalle & Associates is the Village’s planning consultant for this project. 
He provided a memo dated June 8, 2018 to the Commission. 
Kevin Wehner representing KL Engineering, working for Moose International, also provided a 
memo to the Commission. 
Mr. Benforado opened up the floor to the audience for comments and questions. 
Joan Benca, 2810 Marshall Court, said she likes the footprint, layout and concept. She has 
concerns about traffic and parking. Adequate parking is essential because of all the demand in 

http://www.mooseheart.org/
http://www.lodgic.org/


 

Page 3 of 5 

 

the area. She suggested they consider more gym/fitness than alcohol/food. The project may need 
more indoor space for kids’ activities/play. 
Peg Olson, 2822 Marshall Court, like the project in general but as an across the street neighbor 
she is concerned about late night activity. 
Vin Gibbons, 2820 Marshall Court, commends the project for addressing children’s needs. He 

has concerns about traffic, parking and the architecture (how the height compares to other 
buildings in the area). He asked if the facility is appropriate for older, school age children. 
Mr. Frantz mentioned the University Avenue reconstruction project design phase has just begun. 
There will be much work to address the traffic going to the hospital, including a double turn lane 
from University Avenue to University Bay Drive. The project is schedule for 2022. 
Ms. Farr mentioned the intended demographics of the facility. Among other things, it is intended 
for business and IT professionals, and medical adjacent businesses. 
Michael Stiennon, 2814 Marshall Court, has concerns about parking. He indicated the future 
streetscape changes might reduce existing street parking. He believes the calculations for 
adequate parking are underestimated. He is concerned about the hours of operation and the affect 
it will have on the neighbors at Shackleton Square. He is also concerned about the signage and 
noise from the kitchen. 
Maureen Rickman of Psychiatric Services, 2727 Marshall Court (adjacent property/business), 
mentioned they are trying to keep their business, which has been open for 50 years in the 
Village, in operation and that parking on Marshall Court is their number one obstacle. 
Maree Elowson, 2822 Marshall Court, asked if Catafalque Drive would be directly opposite the 
Shackleton Square underground parking access. 
Ms. Farr took a moment to answer some of the questions that were asked: 
The Daycare is licensed to a maximum of 50 children and they do have a large play area in the 
design. 
The event space has a capacity for 60 but they expect it will typically be used for smaller groups. 
The Bar will close at the same time as the restaurant (10:00 pm on weekdays, 11:00 pm on 
weekends). 
The Champaign, Illinois facility has a fitness center and they could explore that for this facility if 
there was interest from the community. 
Mr. Arneson mentioned the restaurant exhaust fans will be directed vertically through the roof, 
not out the side of the building. 
Mr. Bruce pointed out that Catafalque Drive is west of the entrance to Shackleton Square. 
Erhard Joeres, 2822 Marshall Court, pointed out that noise is a critical issue and is often ignored 
as an environmental issue in many construction projects. 
Mr. Benforado closed the public hearing at 8:35 pm. 
Mr. Frantz mentioned that Catafalque Drive will be a public street, so parking could be 
considered on both sides of it. He said the streetscape changes could include 7-14 new parking 
spaces on Marshall Court behind University Station (on one or both sides of the street). Village 
staff and interested parties are looking at options to replace the stalls that will be lost behind 
Psychiatric Services when the bike path is completed. They would receive payment for land and 
could lease spaces from other neighboring property owners as a temporary solution. Mr. Frantz 
also mentioned the CSM land exchange would create some additional parking spaces at 
University Station. Lastly, the Ronald McDonald House addition project includes underground 
parking that should accommodate all of its parking needs for staff, guests and volunteers, 
relieving some of the demand on Marshall Court. 



 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Mr. Slavney introduced himself to the Commission. He is the planning consultant from 
Vandewalle & Associates. The Village’s regular planning consultant is unavailable for this 

project. He explained his roles in the evaluation process. He reviews the technical findings as 
they relate to the requested zoning change. He evaluates and requires clarification of submittals. 
He looks at community impacts, such as, lighting, noise, stormwater, traffic, etc. 
He mentioned that the General Development Plan (GDP) and Specific Development Plan (SDP), 
if approved, will become the zoning code for this property. 
He also looks at the impact of the project on the community with respect to aesthetics, noise, 
lighting, stormwater, and most importantly for this site, parking and traffic. 
Mr. Slavney looks to the future for potential changes of use on the property, asking how this 
building could be used 20 years down the road. The design is good, being only two stories and 
underground parking. If it were to become a typical commercial/office building, it would have 
adequate parking. His concern about parking with respect to the client’s engineer’s estimates are 

related to a situation where co-working members are meeting with a clients, is there a reservation 
process that avoids a situation where multiple members are meeting with multiple clients. That 
situation could overwhelm the parking availability. 
His code review shows the project is an acceptable mixed-use operation with adequate parking. 
The traffic study provided by the KL Engineering does not address the childcare facility and the 
expected parking needs for the co-working space. He is unable to draw final conclusions at this 
time and asked the developer address these questions at the next meeting. 
Mr. Wehner explained the methodology used for KL Engineering’s traffic study. KL 
Engineering has worked for municipalities, WISDOT and private entities. For this project, they 
used gross square footage of the building for trip generations (not net sq. ft.). There is good mass 
transit options in this area and the facility will be served by pedestrian and bicycle traffic. The 
estimated linked usages for trip generation (common trips to the site) and parking, i.e. trip to 
daycare and restaurant to pick up kids and food during one trip. 
 
Action on rezoning of property at 2801 Marshall Court 
The Commission took no action at this time. 
 
Public Hearing on text changes to the Village’s zoning code amending Sections 10-1-100 
and 10-1-140 clarifying language that decks are structures and amending the definition of 
lot coverage 
Mr. Benforado opened the public hearing at 9:07 pm. 
Mr. Frantz explained the ordinance change clarify some definitions in the zoning code and make 
it consistent from one part of the code to another, specifically a “Deck” will be considered as a 
“Structure” rather than a “Use”. In addition, “Main Structure” is inconsistent with other areas of 
the Code and should be “Principle Structure”. Similarly, for the definition of “Lot Coverage” 
should refer to the “Principle” and “Accessory” structures. 
Michael Stiennon, 2816 Marshall Court, said he has a deck at his house and asked if this change 
would make that deck non-conforming. Mr. Frantz said there would be no effect on decks at 
Shackleton Square. 
Mr. Benforado closed the public hearing at 9:12 pm. 
Mr. Remington indicated that “main” should also be changed to “principle” in the second 

sentence of the “Deck” definition. 



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

Mr. Etmanczyk asked if the Village would review the existing deck at homes. Mr. Frantz 
indicated there is no plan to go back and look at decks with respect to the lot coverage. 
 
Recommendation to Board on text changes to the Village’s zoning code amending Sections 

10-1-100 and 10-1-140 clarifying language that decks are structures and amending the 
definition of lot coverage 
Mr. Wellensiek moved and Mr. Munson seconded a motion to recommend approval of this 
ordinance changing the text of the zoning code amending sections 10-1-100 and 10-1-140 
clarifying language that decks are structures and amending the definition of lot coverage, with 
Ms. Remington’s suggested changes. 
Vote: Approved 7-0. 
 
Approval of meeting minutes 
The Commission postponed approval of the minutes until the next meeting. 
 
Review/action on need for conditional use permit to construct door overhangs at 3414 Lake 
Mendota Drive 
The homeowner was not in attendance. Mr. Frantz explained the homeowner wants to put 
awnings over windows on the lakeside of the house to protect against water infiltration. The 
decorative awnings would stick out about 8” from the wall. He said the Village Code strictly 
states that any new structures added to a house that reduces the distance between the lake and the 
home require a conditional use permit approval. Mr. Frantz added that the Code seems 
excessively restrictive, especially in this case. 
Mr. Munson granted that this seems excessive in this situation but asked where does the 
Commission draw the line for these types of requests. 
Mr. Benforado said he tends to agree with Mr. Munson. He describes the Lakefront Setback Line 
as a bright line for anything north of a structure on Lake Mendota Drive. 
Mr. Imes indicated he would view the awnings as ornamental to the windows, similar to a light 
sconce protruding from a house. 
Mr. Etmanczyk brought up the process the Commission went through when considering a project 
at another house on the lakeside of Lake Mendota Drive. 
Ms. Remington asked if canvas awnings that could be taken down would be considered a similar 
structure. Mr. Frantz indicated he had not considered that point. 
Mr. Frantz will advise the homeowner to go through the Conditional Use process. 
 
Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:30 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
David Sykes 
Administrative Services Manager/Deputy Clerk 



 

 

18

20

22

24

26

28

30

32

34
1

-U
n

iv
er

si
ty

 B
ay

 D
r.

 2
7

0
 f

t 
n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
H

ig
h

la
n

d
A

ve
.

2
-U

n
iv

er
si

ty
 B

ay
 D

r.
 3

5
0

 f
t 

so
u

th
 o

f 
H

ar
va

rd
 D

r.

3
-O

xf
o

rd
 R

d
. 2

0
0

 f
t 

ea
st

 o
f 

Sw
ee

tb
ri

ar
 R

d
.

4
-E

d
ge

h
ill

 D
r.

 1
8

0
 f

t 
so

u
th

 o
f 

B
la

ck
h

aw
k 

D
r.

5
-E

d
ge

h
ill

 D
r.

 4
9

0
 f

t 
n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
To

p
p

in
g 

R
d

.

6
-S

h
o

re
w

o
o

d
 B

lv
d

. 1
8

6
 f

ee
t 

n
o

rt
h

 o
f 

Lo
cu

st
 D

r.

7
-S

h
o

re
w

o
o

d
 B

lv
d

. 4
8

0
 f

t 
so

u
th

 o
f 

B
o

w
d

o
in

 R
d

.

8
-L

ak
e 

M
en

d
o

ta
 D

r.
 2

0
6

 f
t 

ea
st

 o
f 

Ed
ge

h
ill

 D
r.

9
-L

ak
e 

M
en

d
o

ta
 D

r.
 1

2
4

0
 f

t 
ea

st
 o

f 
Su

m
ac

 D
r.

1
0

-C
o

lu
m

b
ia

 R
d

. D
ar

tm
o

u
th

 R
d

. t
o

 U
n

iv
er

si
ty

B
ay

 D
r.

1
1

-E
d

ge
h

ill
 D

r.
 E

d
ge

h
ill

 P
kw

y.
 t

o
 B

la
ck

h
aw

k 
D

r.

1
2

-B
la

ck
h

aw
k 

D
r.

 E
d

ge
h

ill
 D

r.
 t

o
 T

o
p

p
in

g 
R

d
.

1
3

-O
xf

o
rd

 R
d

. S
h

o
re

w
o

o
d

 B
lv

d
. t

o
 D

ar
tm

o
u

th
R

d
.

1
4

-H
ar

va
rd

 D
r.

 Y
al

e 
R

d
. t

o
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y 

B
ay

 D
r.

Sp
ee

d
 (

m
p

h
)

Shorewood Hills Traffic Study
85% 2018

95% 2018

85% 1988

2018 Speed
Limit

1988 Speed
Limit

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

Tr
af

fi
c 

C
o

u
n

ts

Shorewood Hills Traffic Study 2018 1988



Table 1: Shorewood Hills Traffic Study Summary 

  

Average Daily 
Counts Speed 

2018 1988 2018 1988 

  Street Location    85% 95% 85% 

1 University Bay Drive 270 ft north of Highland Avenue 2179   24 28   

2 University Bay Drive 350 ft south of Harvard Drive 2063   25 28   

3 Oxford Road 200 ft east of Sweetbriar Road 1298   26 29   

4 Edgehill Drive 180 ft south of Blackhawk Drive 1134 2120 24 28 32 

5 Edgehill Drive 490 ft north of Topping Road 1305 2120 24 27 32 

6 Shorewood Blvd 186 feet north of Locust Drive 5139 7150 23 24 26 

7 Shorewood Blvd 480 ft south of Bowdoin Road 1945 3062 23 24 30 

8 Lake Mendota Drive 206 ft east of Edgehill Drive 1322   24 28 30 

9 Lake Mendota Drive 1240 ft east of Sumac Drive 1173   24 28 33 

10 Columbia Road Dartmouth Road to University Bay Drive   535     23 

11 Edgehill Drive Edgehill Pkwy. to Blackhawk Drive   2350     30 

12 Blackhawk Drive Edgehill Drive to Topping Road   297     27 

13 Oxford Road Shorewood Blvd. to Dartmouth Road   900     23 

14 Harvard Drive Yale Road to University Bay Drive   292     19 

 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

9

8

10

11

12

13

14
Locust Dr

Edgehill Dr

University Ave

Topping RdTally Ho Ln

Oxford Rd

Harvard Dr

Co
lum

bia
 Rd

Bla
ckh

aw
k D

r
Sunset Dr

University Bay Dr

Lake Mendota Dr

Shorewood Blvd

Haight Rd

Wellesley Rd

Su
ma

c D
r

Colgate Rd

Dartmouth Rd

Oak Way

Crestwood Dr

Amherst Dr

Wood Ln

Ro
se 

Pl

Ya
le 

Rd

Edgehill Pkwy

Co
rne

ll C
t

Sweetbriar Rd

Marshall Ct

Circle Close

Vib
urn

um
 Dr

Bu
rba

nk
 P

l

Highbury Rd

Eagle Heights Dr

We
ste

rn 
Rd

Hig
hla

nd
 Av

e

Bowdoin R
d

Sw
art

hm
ore

 C
t

University Houses

Be
loi

t C
t

Wood Close Eagle Heights Dr

University Ave

Ea
gle

 He
igh

ts D
r

La
ke

 M
en

do
ta 

Dr

Hig
hb

ury
 R

d

Eagle Heights Dr Eagle Heights DrShorewood Hills Traffic Study

Town & Country Engineering, Inc. makes no representation regarding the accuracy or completeness of this map
and its underlying data.  Any use or reuse of this map will be at your own risk and without liability or legal
exposure to Town & Country Engineering, Inc.  Not to be used for utility marking for purposes of Digger's Hotline.

¯

Date: 6/7/2018

0 240 480120

Feet

2912  M ark e tp l ace  D r ive2912  M ark e tp l ace  D r ive
Su i te  103Su i te  103
Mad i son ,  W I 5 3719Mad i son ,  W I 5 3719
(608 ) 273 - 3350(608 ) 273 - 3350
ww w .t ceng i nee rs .ne tww w .t ceng i nee rs .ne t

Location of 
Traffic Study



Village of Shorewood Hills Traffic Calming Policy  
 

The Village of Shorewood Hills utilizes a demonstrably successful traffic calming 
program consisting of education, enforcement and monitoring based on a twenty mile per 
hour speed limit on Village streets except University Avenue and Locust Drive.* 
Physical traffic calming measures such as speed humps, and tables will not be considered 
on Village streets presently due to low prevailing speeds and low traffic volumes.  
 
Summary of Data and Conditions  
85th percentile speeds on all Village streets is less than 29 miles per hour and on most 
streets** the 85th percentile speeds is 25 miles per hour or less.  
 
Volume of traffic on all Village streets is less than 3000 vehicles per day and on most 
streets** traffic volumes are less than 800 per day. 
 
The existing narrow, hilly curving features of many Village streets also contribute to the 
success of the Village traffic calming program.  In addition the presence of garden 
triangles at intersections, as well as the offset nature of many intersections act to decrease 
traffic speed.  Nearly all Village streets reflect one or more of these attributes.  
 
There are no village streets that exhibit   repetitive accidents involving vehicles, bicycles 
or pedestrians.   
 
Resulting Traffic Calming Policy  
The above data and conditions indicate that physical traffic calming measures will not be 
cost effective and the intended impacts of physical devices to reduce speed and/or 
volume such as humps, tables, and traffic circles will be negligible to non existent. 
 
Physical traffic calming measures will only be considered if 85th percentile traffic speeds 
exceed 32 mph and traffic volumes are in excess of 800 vehicles per day. 
 
The Village police department proactively enforces a 20 mph speed limit through 
systematic patrol, use of radar and enforcement through warning and ticketing. 
 
Comprehensive educational efforts are made possible through the monthly Village 
bulletin that is mailed and emailed to 85% of all Village residents and through a blast 
email system with 85% penetration. 
 
The Village deploys a mobile speed board to alert motorists to the 20 speed limit and the 
speed that they are travelling. The speed board is also able to collect and store speed and 
volume data for analysis. 
 
The Village also randomly deploys speed and volume tubes on Village streets in order to 
collect and analysis data to ensure that 85th percentile speed and traffic volumes are 
within the parameters that the Village has adopted though this policy. 
 



Complaint Handling Process  
Complaints regarding speed on Village streets shall be directed to the Village 
Administrator and/or Police Chief. Through discussion and examination of existing data 
with the complainant   the concern may be resolved without further action. However 
further action may be warranted and take combinations in  the form of targeted 
enforcement, educational email blasts, articles in the Village bulletin, and deployment of 
the speed board in the identified area. 
 
The Village may also engage in data collection in order to reevaluate   85th percentile 
speeds as well as traffic volumes to see if there have been any changes. If speeds exceed 
standards established by the Village, additional traffic calming techniques may be 
considered and the matter brought to the attention of the Public Works Committee for 
possible further recommended actions that may ultimately involve consideration by the 
Village Board. 
 
Reconstruction of Streets and Traffic Calming  
When a Village street    is scheduled for reconstruction staff   will compile and analyze 
speed and volume data for that street. Residents residing on the street under consideration 
will be specifically invited to a series of meetings. At these meetings input into design 
decisions will be afforded and concern related to traffic speed and/or volumes addressed 
as part of a collaborative design process.  
 
 
 
*University Avenue is a regional commuter route and is not included in this policy.  The 
Village has completed and adopted an intergovernmental project titled University Avenue 
Corridor Study with the City of Madison and University of Wisconsin.  
 
* The speed limit on Locust Drive is 25 mph. Due to its significance as a Village 
collector street and heavy use by emergency response vehicles physical traffic calming 
will not be considered. 
 
** University Bay Drive, and Lake Mendota Drive have traffic volumes in excess of 
1,000 per day but less than  3,000 and 85th percentile speeds range from 26- 28 mph. 
These streets also serve as Village collector streets and are through streets that are also 
used frequently by emergency response vehicles. Traffic volume and speeds are below 
Village standards for physical traffic calming, but due to their use pattern would not be 
considered for physical traffic calming in any event. The Village has installed four 
stationery speed warning display devices, two on each street to enhance traffic calming in 
response to resident concerns. These devices are also capable of data collection.  
 
**Shorewood Boulevard was reconstructed in 2009. Due its proximity to the school and 
its significance as a Village collector street special traffic calming was constructed in the 
vicinity of the school including bump outs, special line painting and staggered one lane 
speed tables.    
 



Shorewood Hills Police Department 
Chief Aaron P. Chapin 

810 Shorewood Boulevard 
Madison, WI 53705-2115 

Phone: 608-267-1110 / Fax: 608-267-1155 
www.shorewood-hills.org 

 
 
 
 

TO:  VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 
FROM:    AARON P. CHAPIN, CHIEF OF POLICE 
 
 
RE:     POLICE DEPARTMENT SUMMARY  
 
 
DATE: JULY 13, 2018 
 
 
 
CALLS FOR SERVICE: 
 
In June, officers handled 457 incidents of various different natures.  12 of the calls for service 
were classified by the officers as a criminal offense including 1 drug incident/investigation, 1 
non-domestic disturbance, 1 domestic disturbance, 1 fraud investigation, 1 stolen bicycle, 1 theft 
from automobile, 1 retail theft, 3 non-retail thefts, 1 threat complaint and 1 tresspass complaint. 
There were fourteen 9-1-1 calls that were not related to another investigation.   
 
Officers conducted 13 crash investigations during the month.  There were 63 parking cases for 
vehicles parked illegally on the village streets and zero complaints of illegal parking on private 
property.  Officers also conducted 100 traffic stops for various violations including 2 arrests for 
Operating While Intoxicated.   
 
The rest of the calls for service were of a routine nature including foot patrols, check areas, 
check property and other non-investigative police services.   
 
TRAINING: 
 
During the month of June, SHPD partnered with UWPD on a training called Integrating 
Communication, Assessment and Tactics (ICAT) and several of the staff members completed the 
training. The focus on ICAT training is slowing down and deescalating situations.  We utilized 

http://www.shorewood-hills.org/


Shorewood Hills Police Department 
Chief Aaron P. Chapin 

810 Shorewood Boulevard 
Madison, WI 53705-2115 

Phone: 608-267-1110 / Fax: 608-267-1155 
www.shorewood-hills.org 

PO Pierce, PO A. Dostalek, Sgt. Denzer and me as instructors at various times throughout the 
training to supplement the UWPD training cadre.   
 
PO A. Dostalek attended training on investigations which was hosted at UWPD.     
 
FUTURE ISSUES/CONCERNS: 
CSO Tyler Eldridge has joined the Army full-time and has resigned from the SHPD.  His last 
day with the organization is July 18th.  I wish Tyler well in his career path and thank him for his 
service to the SHPD and our community.   
 
Steven Boyd has been hired to fill the vacancy created by Tyler leaving the department.  Steven 
started work with us on July 2nd and has had the opportunity to train with Tyler for a little over 
two weeks prior to Tyler’s departure.   
 
Just a reminder that I have been selected and will be attending the Instructor Development in 
Problem Based Learning course being hosted at the South Dakota Law Enforcement Training 
Center in Pierre, SD.  The course is grant funded and is promoted/taught by the Police Society 
for Problem Based Learning which is the organization I am the President of.  The department 
will need to cover fuel for the squad and my salary.  All other costs (food, lodging, tuition) are 
covered by the grant.  Lt. Martens and Sgt. Denzer will be in charge of the day-to-day operations 
while I am away.  The training is July 16 to July 27.   
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Aaron P Chapin, Chief of Police 
 
 

http://www.shorewood-hills.org/


Monthly Incident Summary Report
6/1/2018 Through 6/30/2018

Incident Type Total
911 Call Silent  3
911 Call Unintentional  9
911 Disconnect  1
911 Misdial Call  1
Accident Hit and Run  1
Accident Private Property  2
Accident Property Damage  7
Accident Unknown Injuries  1
Accident w/Injuries  2
Alarm  9
Animal Bite  1
Animal Lost  1
Animal Stray  3
Annoying/Obscene Phone Call  1
Assist Citizen  31
Assist EMS/Fire  5
Assist Police  19
Check Person  8
Check Property  66
Conveyance  1
Damage to Property  2
Disturbance Unwanted Person  1
Domestic Disturbance  1
Drug Incident/Investigation  1
Follow-Up  2
Foot Patrol  1
Fraud  1
Information  47
Missing Juvenile/Runaway  2
Noise Complaint  2
Non-Urgent Notifications  1
OMVWI Arrest/Intoxicated Driver  2
Parking Complaint On Street  63
Phone  10
Property Found  4
Safety Hazard  19
Special Event  4
Stolen Bicycle  1
Theft  3
Theft from Auto  1
Theft Retail  1
Threats Complaint  1
Traffic Complaint/Investigation  14
Traffic Stop  100
Trespass  1

 457Grand Total

Page 1 of 1



Shorewood Hills rolling 12-month incident summary

Jun2018 May2018 Apr2018 Mar2018 Feb2018 Jan2018 Dec2017 Nov2017 Oct2017 Sep2017 Aug2017 Jul2017 Total
Incident Type 457 421 409 402 311 370 309 288 343 313 354 409 4386
911 Abandoned Call 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 2 2 2 1 5 14
911 Call Playing W/Telephone 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
911 Call Question 0 1 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 3 1 0 10
911 Call Silent 3 4 3 1 2 2 2 2 3 2 8 5 37
911 Call Unintentional 9 2 1 2 1 6 1 3 3 7 1 4 40
911 Disconnect 1 2 3 1 2 2 2 1 1 5 2 3 25
911 Misdial Call 1 1 3 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 2 1 12
Accident Hit And Run 1 5 2 0 1 2 0 2 0 0 2 4 19
Accident Private Property 2 3 0 0 1 1 1 5 1 1 5 3 23
Accident Property Damage 7 6 8 4 10 4 7 12 6 4 12 14 94
Accident Unknown Injuries 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 2 6
Accident W/Injuries 2 3 2 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 10
Adult Arrested Person 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 3 8
Alarm 9 10 8 11 12 12 22 9 10 8 10 8 129
Animal Bite 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 5
Animal Complaint/Disturbance 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 4
Animal Found 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Animal Lost 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 3
Animal Stray 3 5 2 6 8 3 0 3 5 9 3 7 54
Annoying/Obscene Phone Call 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3
Assist Citizen 31 44 32 33 23 34 8 9 17 19 15 23 288
Assist Citizen Lake 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Assist Court 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2
Assist Ems/Fire 5 5 5 11 9 15 11 6 16 6 14 7 110
Assist K9 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Assist Police 19 19 21 5 13 8 11 7 9 6 21 14 153
Atl Person 0 1 1 1 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 1 8
Burglary Non-Residential 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
Burglary Residential 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 1 5
Check Person 8 5 3 2 5 3 7 3 10 10 15 10 81
Check Property 66 74 45 33 32 65 42 29 57 28 40 69 580
Child Abuse 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Civil Dispute 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2
Conveyance 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 3
Conveyance Alcohol (Detox) 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Damage To Property 2 0 1 2 0 1 1 5 3 1 2 0 18
Death Investigation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Disturbance 0 0 2 3 3 0 0 0 1 3 0 1 13



Jun2018 May2018 Apr2018 Mar2018 Feb2018 Jan2018 Dec2017 Nov2017 Oct2017 Sep2017 Aug2017 Jul2017 Total
Disturbance Unwanted Person 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 0 1 1 1 0 12
Domestic Disturbance 1 3 2 0 0 3 2 1 0 2 1 0 15
Drug Incident/Investigation 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 4
Follow-Up 2 3 3 3 7 3 0 2 3 4 4 8 42
Foot Patrol 1 0 3 6 2 1 0 0 2 1 1 2 19
Found Person 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Fraud 1 0 3 1 1 1 2 1 1 4 6 2 23
Information 47 34 39 42 28 20 12 11 29 12 20 14 308
Intoxicated Person 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 4
Juvenile Complaint 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 2 0 5
Liquor Law Violation 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 3
Medical Examiner 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Missing Adult 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 4
Missing Juvenile/Runaway 2 0 1 1 1 7 4 1 1 2 1 0 21
Neighbor Trouble 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 4
Noise Complaint 2 1 1 0 0 1 0 2 0 1 1 2 11
Non-Urgent Notifications 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Omvwi Arrest/Intoxicated Driver 2 2 3 3 1 0 2 0 2 2 2 2 21
Parking Complaint On Street 63 56 90 70 49 51 33 40 27 47 18 50 594
Parking Complaint Pvt Prop 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 8 8 6 4 11 38
Phone 10 7 11 9 21 22 15 7 3 11 13 11 140
Preserve The Peace 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 4
Property Found 4 1 1 1 0 4 5 2 2 1 3 4 28
Property Lost 0 1 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 5
Recovered/Stolen Outside Agen 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Robbery Armed 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Safety Hazard 19 7 4 5 8 8 4 4 1 6 7 12 85
Serving Legal Papers 0 1 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 5
Sexual Assault Of A Child 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Solicitors Complaint 0 0 1 1 0 0 3 0 0 0 1 0 6
Special Event 4 1 0 0 2 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 10
Stalking Complaint 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Stolen Auto 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 4 1 0 1 0 10
Stolen Bicycle 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 3
Suspicious Person 0 0 1 1 3 0 3 2 3 1 9 1 24
Suspicious Vehicle 0 1 2 6 1 3 2 5 6 2 2 5 35
Test 911 Call 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 3
Theft 3 0 2 7 2 5 5 0 2 2 3 3 34
Theft From Auto 1 2 1 0 0 0 0 2 3 0 4 3 16
Theft Retail 1 2 0 0 4 3 1 0 2 2 0 2 17
Threats Complaint 1 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 6
Traffic Complaint/Investigation 14 10 12 23 8 17 9 15 25 13 8 12 166
Traffic Incident 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2
Traffic Stop 100 85 77 98 39 44 76 66 68 65 76 74 868
Trespass 1 2 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 1 1 0 8
Unknown 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
Violation Of Court Order 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1



Jun2018 May2018 Apr2018 Mar2018 Feb2018 Jan2018 Dec2017 Nov2017 Oct2017 Sep2017 Aug2017 Jul2017 Total
Weapons Offense 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2
Worthless Checks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1




